# WESTERN Tenth Edition CIVILIZATION

Jackson J. Spielvogel







# WESTERN CIVILIZATION

# WESTERN CIVILIZATION

Jackson J. Spielvogel

The Pennsylvania State University





# Western Civilization, Tenth Edition Jackson J. Spielvogel

Product Director: Paul Banks Product Manager: Scott Greenan

Senior Content Developer: Margaret Beasley Associate Content Developer: Andrew Newton

Product Assistant: Emma Guiton Media Developer: Kate McLean

Senior Marketing Manager: Valerie Hartman

Senior Content Project Manager:

Carol Newman

Senior Art Director: Cate Rickard Barr Manufacturing Planner: Fola Orekoya

IP Analyst: Betsy Hathaway

IP Project Manager: Alex Ricciardi

Production Service/Compositor: Thistle Hill Publishing Services/ Cenveo® Publisher Services

Text and Cover Designer: Deborah Dutton/ Dutton & Sherman Design

Cover Image: Vermeer, "Lady Writing a Letter with Her Maid"/Fine Art Images/Heritage Images/Getty Images © 2018, 2015, 2012 Cengage Learning

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. No part of this work covered by the copyright herein may be reproduced or distributed in any form or by any means, except as permitted by U.S. copyright law, without the prior written permission of the copyright owner.

> For product information and technology assistance, contact us at Cengage Learning Customer & Sales Support, 1-800-354-9706

For permission to use material from this text or product, submit all requests online at www.cengage.com/permissions. Further permissions questions can be emailed to permissionrequest@cengage.com.

Library of Congress Control Number: 2016945331

Student Edition:

ISBN: 978-1-305-95231-7

Loose-leaf Edition: ISBN: 978-1-337-29541-3

# Cengage Learning

20 Channel Center Street Boston, MA 02210 USA

Cengage Learning is a leading provider of customized learning solutions with employees residing in nearly 40 different countries and sales in more than 125 countries around the world. Find your local representative at www.cengage.com.

Cengage Learning products are represented in Canada by Nelson Education, Ltd.

To learn more about Cengage Learning Solutions, visit www.cengage.com.

Purchase any of our products at your local college store or at our preferred online store www.cengagebrain.com.

Printed in the United States of America Print Number: 05 Print Year: 2019

# ABOUT THE AUTHOR

JACKSON J. SPIELVOGEL is associate professor emeritus of history at The Pennsylvania State University. He received his Ph.D. from The Ohio State University, where he specialized in Reformation history under Harold J. Grimm. His articles and reviews have appeared in such journals as Moreana, Journal of General Education, Catholic Historical Review, Archiv für Reformationsgeschichte, and American Historical Review. He has also contributed chapters or articles to The Social History of the Reformation, The Holy Roman Empire: A Dictionary Handbook, the Simon Wiesenthal Center Annual of Holocaust Studies, and Utopian Studies. His work has been supported by fellowships from the Fulbright Foundation and the Foundation for Reformation Research. At Penn State, he helped inaugurate the Western civilization courses as well as a popular course on Nazi Germany. His book Hitler and Nazi Germany was published in 1987 (seventh edition, 2014). He is the coauthor (with William Duiker) of World History, first published in 1998 (eighth edition, 2016), and The Essential World History (eighth edition, 2017). Professor Spielvogel has won five major university-wide teaching awards. In 1988–1989, he held the Penn State Teaching Fellowship, the university's most prestigious teaching award. He won the Dean Arthur Ray Warnock Award for Outstanding Faculty Member in 1996 and the Schreyer Honors College Excellence in Teaching Award in 2000.

TO DIANE,
WHOSE LOVE AND SUPPORT MADE IT ALL POSSIBLE
J.J.S.

# BRIEF CONTENTS

Documents xviii

Maps xxv

Features xxvii

Preface xxviii

Acknowledgments xxxii

Introduction to Students of Western Civilization xxxvi

- THE ANCIENT NEAR EAST: THE FIRST CIVILIZATIONS 1
- 2 THE ANCIENT NEAR EAST: PEOPLES AND EMPIRES 32
- 3 THE CIVILIZATION OF THE GREEKS 53
- 4 THE HELLENISTIC WORLD 87
- 5 THE ROMAN REPUBLIC 110
- 6 THE ROMAN EMPIRE 143
- 7 LATE ANTIQUITY AND THE EMERGENCE OF THE MEDIEVAL WORLD 175
- 8 EUROPEAN CIVILIZATION IN THE EARLY MIDDLE AGES, 750–1000 209
- 9 THE RECOVERY AND GROWTH OF EUROPEAN SOCIETY IN THE HIGH MIDDLE AGES 239
- 10 THE RISE OF KINGDOMS AND THE GROWTH OF CHURCH POWER 267
- 11 THE LATER MIDDLE AGES: CRISIS AND DISINTEGRATION IN THE FOURTEENTH CENTURY 299
- 12 RECOVERY AND REBIRTH: THE AGE OF THE RENAISSANCE 331
- 13 REFORMATION AND RELIGIOUS WARFARE IN THE SIXTEENTH CENTURY 365
- 14 EUROPE AND THE WORLD: NEW ENCOUNTERS, 1500–1800 399
- 15 STATE BUILDING AND THE SEARCH FOR ORDER IN THE SEVENTEENTH CENTURY 432

- 16 TOWARD A NEW HEAVEN AND A NEW EARTH: THE SCIENTIFIC REVOLUTION AND THE EMERGENCE OF MODERN SCIENCE 472
- 17 THE EIGHTEENTH CENTURY: AN AGE OF ENLIGHTENMENT 499
- 18 THE EIGHTEENTH CENTURY: EUROPEAN STATES, INTERNATIONAL WARS, AND SOCIAL CHANGE 528
- 19 A REVOLUTION IN POLITICS: THE ERA OF THE FRENCH REVOLUTION AND NAPOLEON 559
- 20 THE INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION AND ITS IMPACT ON EUROPEAN SOCIETY 592
- 21 REACTION, REVOLUTION, AND ROMANTICISM, 1815–1850 620
- 22 AN AGE OF NATIONALISM AND REALISM, 1850-1871 653
- 23 MASS SOCIETY IN AN "AGE OF PROGRESS," 1871-1894 686
- 24 AN AGE OF MODERNITY, ANXIETY, AND IMPERIALISM, 1894–1914 719
- 25 THE BEGINNING OF THE TWENTIETH-CENTURY CRISIS: WAR AND REVOLUTION 757
- 26 THE FUTILE SEARCH FOR STABILITY: EUROPE BETWEEN THE WARS, 1919–1939 792
- 27 THE DEEPENING OF THE EUROPEAN CRISIS: WORLD WAR II 827
- 28 COLD WAR AND A NEW WESTERN WORLD, 1945–1965 863
- 29 PROTEST AND STAGNATION: THE WESTERN WORLD, 1965-1985 896
- 30 AFTER THE FALL: THE WESTERN WORLD IN A GLOBAL AGE (SINCE 1985) 920

Glossary 953 Index 963

# CONTENTS

Documents xviii	The Spiritual Dimensions of Israel 35
Maps xxv	The Social Structure of the Hebrews 37
Features xxvii	The Neighbors of the Israelites 39
Preface xxviii	
Acknowledgments xxxiii	The Assyrian Empire 40
Introduction to Students of Western Civilization xxxvi	Organization of the Empire 40 The Assyrian Military Machine 41 Assyrian Society 42
THE ANCIENT NEAR EAST: THE FIRST CIVILIZATIONS 1	Assyrian Culture 42  OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS  The Governing of Empires: Two Approaches 43
The First Humans 2	The Neo-Babylonian Empire 45
The Emergence of Homo sapiens 2 The Hunter-Gatherers of the Old Stone Age 3 The Neolithic Revolution (ca. 10,000–4000 B.C.E.) 3 The Emergence of Civilization 5 Why Did Early Civilizations Develop? 6	The Persian Empire 45 Cyrus the Great 46 Expanding the Empire 47 Governing the Empire 48 The Great King 49
	Persian Religion 49
Civilization in Mesopotamia 6 The City-States of Ancient Mesopotamia 7 Empires in Ancient Mesopotamia 8 The Code of Hammurabi 10 The Culture of Mesopotamia 10	CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 51
The Stele in the Ancient World 11	3 THE CIVILIZATION OF THE
Egyptian Civilization: "The Gift of the Nile" 14	GREEKS 53
The Impact of Geography 14	Early Greece 54
OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS The Great Flood: Two Versions 16	Minoan Crete 54 The First Greek State: Mycenae 55
The Old and Middle Kingdoms 17	The Greeks in a Dark Age (ca. 1100-750 B.C.E.) 57
Society and Economy in Ancient Egypt 19 The Culture of Egypt 19	Homer and Homeric Greece 57
Disorder and a New Order: The New Kingdom 22	Homer's Enduring Importance 58
Daily Life in Ancient Egypt 24  IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE The Egyptian Diet 27	The World of the Greek City-States (ca. 750–500 B.C.E.) 59 The Polis 59 Greek Expansion and the Growth of Trade 60
On the Fringes of Civilization 28	Tyranny in the Greek Polis 61
The Impact of the Indo-Europeans 28 The Hittite Empire 29	Sparta 62 Athens 64
CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 29	Greek Culture in the Archaic Age 65  GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES  The Influence of the East on the Greeks 66
THE ANCIENT NEAR EAST: PEOPLES AND EMPIRES 32	The High Point of Greek Civilization: Classical Greece 67 The Challenge of Persia 67 FILM 8 HISTORY 300 (2007) 69
The Hebrews: "The Children of Israel" 33	The Growth of an Athenian Empire 69
Was There a United Kingdom of Israel? 33	The Great Peloponnesian War (431-404 B.C.E.) 71
The Kingdoms of Israel and Judah 33	The Decline of the Greek States (404-118 B.C.E.) 71

Culture and Society of Classical Greece 74 The Writing of History 74 Greek Drama 74 The Arts: The Classical Ideal 76 The Greek Love of Wisdom 78 Greek Religion 79 Life in Classical Athens 81 IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE Activities of Athenian Women 82 OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS Women in Athens and Sparta 83 CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 84 THE HELLENISTIC WORLD 87 Macedonia and the Conquests of Alexander 88 Philip and the Conquest of Greece 88 Alexander the Great 88 OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS Demosthenes and Isocrates Address Philip of Macedonia 89 FILM & HISTORY Alexander (2004) 92

The World of the Hellenistic Kingdoms 94

Hellenistic Monarchies 94

The Threat from the Celts 96

Political and Military Institutions 96

Hellenistic Cities 97

Economic Trends in the Hellenistic World 98

Hellenistic Society 99
New Opportunities for Women 99
The Role of Slavery 101
The Transformation of Education 102

Culture in the Hellenistic World 102

New Directions in Literature 102

Hellenistic Art 102

A Golden Age of Science and Medicine 103

GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

The Influence of the Greeks on India 104

Philosophy: New Schools of Thought 105

Religion in the Hellenistic World 106

Mystery Religions 106

The Jews in the Hellenistic World 107

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE •

CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS
FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 108

5 THE ROMAN REPUBLIC 110

The Emergence of Rome 111
Geography of the Italian Peninsula 111
The Greeks 111

Who Were the Etruscans? 111 Early Rome 112

The Roman Republic (ca. 509-264 B.C.E.) 114
The Roman State 114
The Roman Conquest of Italy 117

The Roman Conquest of the Mediterranean (264–133 B.C.E.) 118

The Struggle with Carthage 118
GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Roman and Chinese Roads 119
The Eastern Mediterranean 121
The Nature of Roman Imperialism 121
Evolution of the Roman Army 122

Society and Culture in the Roman Republic 124
Roman Religion 124
Education: The Importance of Rhetoric 126
The Growth of Slavery 126
The Roman Family 127
FILM & HISTORY
Spartacus (1960) 127
The Evolution of Roman Law 128
The Development of Literature 129
Roman Art 130
Values and Attitudes 110

The Decline and Fall of the Roman Republic (133–31 B.C.E.) 130 Background: Social, Economic, and Political

Background: Social, Economic, and Political Problems
131
The Reforms of Tiberius and Gaius Gracchus
131
Marius and the New Roman Army
132
The Role of Sulla
132
The Death of the Republic
132
OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS
The End of the Republic: Three Views
135

Literature in the Late Republic 137

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE •

CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS
FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 140

6 THE ROMAN EMPIRE 143

The Age of Augustus (31 E.C.E.-14 C.E.) 144
The New Order 144
The Army 145
Roman Provinces and Frontiers 146
Augustan Society 147
A Golden Age of Latin Literature 147
Significance of the Augustan Age 148

The Early Empire (14–180) 148
The Julio-Claudians (14–68) 148
The Flavians (69–96) 150
The Five "Good Emperors" (96–180) 150
The Roman Empire at Its Height: Frontiers and Provinces 151
Prosperity in the Early Empire 154

# Roman Culture and Society in the Early Empire 156

The Silver Age of Latin Literature 156

Art in the Early Empire 156

Imperial Rome 156

The Gladiatorial Shows 158

### FILM & HISTORY

Gladiator (2000) 158

Disaster in Southern Italy 159

The Art of Medicine 159

Slaves and Their Masters 160

The Upper-Class Roman Family 161

# IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

Children in the Roman World 162

### GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Women in the Roman and Han Empires 163

# Transformation of the Roman World: Crises in the Third Century 164

Political and Military Woes 164

Economic and Social Problems 164

# Transformation of the Roman World: The Rise of Christianity 165

The Religious World of the Roman Empire 165

The Jewish Background 166

The Origins of Christianity 166

The Growth of Christianity 169

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Roman Authorities and a Christian on Christianity 170

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 172

# LATE ANTIQUITY AND THE EMERGENCE OF THE MEDIEVAL WORLD 175

# The Late Roman Empire 176

The Reforms of Diocletian and Constantine 176

The Empire's New Religion 178

The End of the Western Empire 179

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Two Views of the Huns 180

# The Germanic Kingdoms 182

The Ostrogothic Kingdom of Italy 183

The Visigothic Kingdom of Spain 184

The Frankish Kingdom 184

Anglo-Saxon England 185

The Society of the Germanic Kingdoms 185

# Development of the Christian Church 187

The Church Fathers 187

The Power of the Pope 188

Church and State 189

Pope Gregory the Great 190

The Monks and Their Missions 190

Christian Intellectual Life in the Germanic Kingdoms 195

# The Byzantine Empire 196

The Reign of Justinian (527-565) 197 From Eastern Roman to Byzantine Empire 200

# The Rise of Islam 203

Muhammad 203

The Teachings of Islam 204

The Spread of Islam 204

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE .

CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 206

# EUROPEAN CIVILIZATION IN THE EARLY MIDDLE AGES, 750-1000 209

# Europeans and the Environment 210

Farming 210

The Climate 210

# The World of the Carolingians 210

Charlemagne and the Carolingian

Empire (768-814) 210

The Carolingian Intellectual Renewal 214

Life in the Carolingian World 215

# Disintegration of the Carolingian Empire 219

Invasions of the Ninth and Tenth Centuries 220

# The Emerging World of Lords and Vassals 223

Vassalage 223

Fief-Holding 224

# GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Lords, Vassals, and Samurai in Europe and Japan 225 New Political Configurations in the Tenth Century 226 The Manorial System 227

# The Zenith of Byzantine Civilization 228

The Macedonian Dynasty 229 Women in Byzantium 230

# The Slavic Peoples of Central and Eastern Europe 231

Western Slavs 231

Southern Slavs 231

Eastern Slavs 232

Women in the Slavic World 232

# The Expansion of Islam 233

The Abbasid Dynasty 233

Islamic Civilization 234

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 236

# THE RECOVERY AND GROWTH OF EUROPEAN SOCIETY IN THE HIGH MIDDLE AGES 239

# Land and People in the High Middle Ages 240 The New Agriculture 240

The Life of the Peasantry 242
The Aristocracy of the High Middle Ages 243

The New World of Trade and Cities 247

The Revival of Trade 247

## OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Two Views of Trade and Merchants 249

The Growth of Cities 249

### **GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES**

Medieval Cities in the West and East 253

Industry in Medieval Cities 254

# The Intellectual and Artistic World of the High Middle Ages 255

The Rise of Universities 255

A Revival of Classical Antiquity 257

The Development of Scholasticism 258

The Revival of Roman Law 259

Literature in the High Middle Ages 260

Romanesque Architecture: "A White Mantle

of Churches" 262

The Gothic Cathedral 263

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE .

CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 264

# 10 THE RISE OF KINGDOMS AND THE GROWTH OF CHURCH POWER 267

The Emergence and Growth of European Kingdoms, 1000–1300 268

England in the High Middle Ages 268

### FILM & HISTORY

The Lion in Winter (1968) 270

The Growth of the French Kingdom 270

Christian Reconquest: The Spanish Kingdoms 273

The Lands of the Holy Roman Empire: Germany and Italy 274

New Kingdoms in Northern and Eastern Europe 276

Impact of the Mongol Empire 277

The Development of Russia 277

# The Recovery and Reform of the Catholic Church 278

The Problems of Decline 278

The Cluniac Reform Movement 279

Reform of the Papacy 279

# Christianity and Medieval Civilization 281

Growth of the Papal Monarchy 281

New Religious Orders and Spiritual Ideals 281

# FILM & HISTORY

Vision 282

Popular Religion in the High Middle Ages 283

## GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Medieval Monasteries in West and East 284

Voices of Protest and Intolerance 286

# The Crusades 289

Background to the Crusades 289

The Early Crusades 290

### OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

The Siege of Jerusalem: Christian and Muslim Perspectives 293

The Crusades of the Thirteenth Century 294 What Were the Effects of the Crusades? 295

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 295

# 1 THE LATER MIDDLE AGES: CRISIS AND DISINTEGRATION IN THE FOURTEENTH CENTURY 299

A Time of Troubles: Black Death and Social Crisis 300

Famine and Population 300

The Black Death: From Asia to Europe 300

The Black Death in Europe 300

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Causes of the Black Death: Contemporary Views 301

Economic Dislocation and Social Upheaval 305

# War and Political Instability 307

Causes of the Hundred Years' War 307

Conduct and Course of the War 308

### FILM & HISTORY

Joan of Arc (1948) and The Messenger: The Story of Joan of Arc (1999) 311

Political Instability 311

The Growth of England's Political Institutions 313

The Problems of the French Kings 314

The German Monarchy 314

The States of Italy 315

# The Decline of the Church 317

Boniface VIII and the Conflict with the State 317

The Papacy at Avignon (1305-1377) 318

The Great Schism 319

New Thoughts on Church and State and the Rise

of Conciliarism 319

Popular Religion in an Age of Adversity 320

# GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Religious Imagery in the Medieval World 321

Changes in Theology 322

# The Cultural World of the Fourteenth

Century 322

The Development of Vernacular Literature 322

A New Art: Giotto 324

# Society in an Age of Adversity 324

Changes in Urban Life 325

New Directions in Medicine 326

Inventions and New Patterns 327

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 328

# RECOVERY AND REBIRTH: THE AGE OF THE RENAISSANCE 331

Meaning and Characteristics of the Italian Renaissance 332

# The Making of Renaissance Society 332

Economic Recovery 332

Social Changes in the Renaissance 334

The Family in Renaissance Italy 336

IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

Family and Marriage in Renaissance Italy 337

# The Italian States in the Renaissance 338

The Five Major States 338 Independent City-States 340 Warfare in Italy 340

The Birth of Modern Diplomacy 342 Machiavelli and the New Statecraft 342

The Intellectual Renaissance in Italy 343

Italian Renaissance Humanism 343

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

The Renaissance Prince: The Views of Machiavelli and Erasmus 344

Education in the Renaissance 346 Humanism and History 348

The Impact of Printing 349

# The Artistic Renaissance 349

Art in the Early Renaissance 349 The Artistic High Renaissance 352

The Artist and Social Status 353

The Northern Artistic Renaissance 354

Music in the Renaissance 355

# The European State in the Renaissance 356

The Growth of the French Monarchy 356

England: Civil War and a New Monarchy 356

The Unification of Spain 357

The Holy Roman Empire: The Success of the Habsburgs 358

The Struggle for Strong Monarchy in Eastern Europe 359

The Ottoman Turks and the End of the Byzantine Empire 359

# The Church in the Renaissance 361

The Problems of Heresy and Reform 361

The Renaissance Papacy 361

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 362

# REFORMATION AND RELIGIOUS WARFARE IN THE SIXTEENTH CENTURY 365

# Prelude to Reformation 366

Christian or Northern Renaissance Humanism 366 Church and Religion on the Eve of the Reformation 368

# Martin Luther and the Reformation in Germany 369

The Early Luther 369

# FILM & HISTORY

Luther (2003) 372

The Risc of Lutheranism 372

Organizing the Church 373

Germany and the Reformation: Religion and Politics 374

# The Spread of the Protestant Reformation 377

Lutheranism in Scandinavia 377

The Zwinglian Reformation 377

### OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

A Reformation Debate: Conflict at Marburg 379

The Radical Reformation: The Anabaptists 379

The Reformation in England 380

John Calvin and Calvinism 382

# The Social Impact of the Protestant Reformation 383

The Family 383

Education in the Reformation 385

Religious Practices and Popular Culture 386

# The Catholic Reformation 386

Catholic Reformation or Counter-Reformation? 386

The Society of Jesus 387

A Revived Papacy 389

The Council of Trent 389

# Politics and the Wars of Religion in the Sixteenth

Century 390

The French Wars of Religion (1562-1598) 390

Philip II and Militant Catholicism 392

Revolt of the Netherlands 393

The England of Elizabeth 394

## FILM & HISTORY

Elizabeth (1998) 396

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 396

# EUROPE AND THE WORLD: NEW ENCOUNTERS, 1500-1800 399

On the Brink of a New World 400

The Motives for Expansion 400

The Means for Expansion 402

# New Horizons: The Portuguese and Spanish

Empires 403

The Development of a Portuguese Maritime Empire 403

### IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

Spices and World Trade 405

Voyages to the New World 406

The Spanish Empire in the New World 407

Disease in the New World 410

# New Rivals on the World Stage 412

Africa: The Slave Trade 412

The West in Southeast Asia 415

### GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

West Meets East: An Exchange of Royal Letters 417
The French and British in India 418
China 419
Japan 420
The Americas 421

# The Impact of European Expansion 423

The Conquered 423

### FILM & HISTORY

The Mission 424 The Conquerors 425

# Toward a World Economy 427

Economic Conditions in the Sixteenth Century 427
The Growth of Commercial Capitalism 427
Mercantilism 428
Overseas Trade and Colonies: Movement Toward
Globalization 428

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 429

# 15 STATE BUILDING AND THE SEARCH FOR ORDER IN THE SEVENTEENTH CENTURY 432

Social Crises, War, and Rebellions 433

The Witchcraft Craze 433
The Thirty Years' War 435
Was There a Military Revolution? 438
Rebellions 439

The Practice of Absolutism: Western Europe 440

Absolute Monarchy in France 440 The Reign of Louis XIV (1643-1715) 441

# GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Sun Kings, West and East 442 The Decline of Spain 447

# Absolutism in Central, Eastern, and Northern Europe 448

The German States 448
Italy: From Spanish to Austrian Rule 449
Russia: From Fledgling Principality to Major
Power 450
The Great Northern States 453
The Ottoman Empire 453
The Limits of Absolutism 455

# Limited Monarchy and Republics 455

The Weakness of the Polish Monarchy
The Golden Age of the Dutch Republic
456

# IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

Dutch Domesticity 457

England and the Emergence of Constitutional Monarchy 458

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Oliver Cromwell: Three Perspectives 460

# The Flourishing of European Culture 464 The Changing Faces of Art 464 A Wondrous Age of Theater 466 CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 469

# 16 TOWARD A NEW HEAVEN AND A NEW EARTH: THE SCIENTIFIC REVOLUTION AND THE EMERGENCE OF MODERN SCIENCE 472

Background to the Scientific Revolution 473
Ancient Authors and Renaissance Artists 473
Technological Innovations and Mathematics 473
Renaissance Magic 474

# Toward a New Heaven: A Revolution in Astronomy 47.

Copernicus 475 Brahe 477 Kepler 477 Galileo 478

### OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

A New Heaven? Faith Versus Reason 481 Newton 482

# Advances in Medicine and Chemistry 484

Paracelsus 484 Vesalius 485 William Harvey 485 Chemistry 486

# Women in the Origins of Modern Science 486

Margaret Cavendish 486 Maria Merian 487 Maria Winkelmann 487 Debates on the Nature of Women 488

Toward a New Earth: Descartes, Rationalism, and a New View of Humankind 488

# The Scientific Method and the Spread of Scientific Knowledge 490

The Scientific Method 490 The Spread of Scientific Knowledge 491

# IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

The Science of Collecting 492 Science and Religion 493

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 496

# 17 THE EIGHTEENTH CENTURY:

The Enlightenment 500
The Paths to Enlightenment 500
The Philosophes and Their Ideas 502
The Social Environment of the Philosophes 510

# Culture and Society in the Enlightenment 510

### OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Women in the Age of the Enlightenment: Rousseau and Wollstonecraft 511

### IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

Women and the Enlightenment Salon 512 Innovations in Art, Music, and Literature 513

# FILM & HISTORY

Amadeus 515

The High Culture of the Eighteenth Century 516

Crime and Punishment 518

The World of Medicine 518

Popular Culture 519

### GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Popular Culture in the West and East 520

# Religion and the Churches 521

The Institutional Church 521

Popular Religion in the Eighteenth Century 523

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW + KEY TERMS + SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING + NOTES 525

# THE EIGHTEENTH CENTURY: EUROPEAN STATES, INTERNATIONAL WARS, AND SOCIAL CHANGE 528

# The European States 529

Enlightened Absolutism? 529

The Atlantic Seaboard States 529

## FILM & HISTORY

Marie Antoinette (2006) 530

Absolutism in Central and Eastern Europe 532

### OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Enlightened Absolutism: Enlightened or Absolute? 536

The Mediterranean World 538

The Scandinavian States 539

Enlightened Absolutism Revisited 539

# Wars and Diplomacy 539

The War of the Austrian Succession (1740-1748) 540

The Seven Years' War (1756-1763) 540

European Armies and Warfare 542

# Economic Expansion and Social Change 543

Growth of the European Population 543

Family, Marriage, and Birthrate Patterns 543

Was There an Agricultural Revolution? 546

New Methods of Finance 548

European Industry 548

Mercantile Empires and Worldwide Trade 549

# The Social Order of the Eighteenth Century 550

The Peasants 551

The Nobility 551

# IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

The Aristocratic Way of Life 553

The Inhabitants of Towns and Cities 554

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 556

# A REVOLUTION IN POLITICS: THE ERA OF THE FRENCH REVOLUTION AND NAPOLEON 559

# The Beginning of the Revolutionary Era: The American Revolution \$60

The War for Independence 560

Forming a New Nation 560

Impact of the American Revolution on Europe 563

# Background to the French Revolution 563

Social Structure of the Old Regime 563

Other Problems Facing the French Monarchy 565

# The French Revolution 566

From Estates-General to a National Assembly 566

Destruction of the Old Regime 567

# GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Revolution and Revolt in France and China 569

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

The Natural Rights of the French People: Two Views 570

The Radical Revolution 573

Reaction and the Directory 581

# The Age of Napoleon 582

The Rise of Napoleon 582

The Domestic Policies of Emperor Napoleon 584

Napoleon's Empire and the European Response 586

The Fall of Napoleon 589

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 589

# THE INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION AND ITS IMPACT ON EUROPEAN SOCIETY 592

# The Industrial Revolution in Great Britain 593

Origins 591

Technological Changes and New Forms of Industrial

Organization 594

Britain's Great Exhibition of 1851 599

# The Spread of Industrialization 601

Industrialization on the Continent 601

The Industrial Revolution in the United States 603

Limiting the Spread of Industrialization in the

Nonindustrialized World 604

# The Social Impact of the Industrial Revolution 605

Population Growth 605

The Growth of Cities 607

# IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

Living Conditions of London's Poor 608

New Social Classes: The Industrial Middle Class 609

### GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Attitudes of the Industrial Middle Class in Britain and Japan 610

New Social Classes: Workers in the Industrial Age 611 Efforts at Change: The Workers 615

Efforts at Change: Reformers and Government 616

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 617

# REACTION, REVOLUTION, AND ROMANTICISM, 1815-1850 620

The Conservative Order (1815-1830) 621

The Peace Settlement 621 The Ideology of Conservatism 622 Conservative Domination: The Concert of Europe 623

Conservative Domination: The European States 627

The Ideologies of Change 630

Liberalism 630 Nationalism 632 Early Socialism 632

Revolution and Reform (1830-1850) 634

Another French Revolution 634 Revolutionary Outbursts in Belgium, Poland, and Italy 635 Reform in Great Britain 635

OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Response to Revolution: Two Perspectives 636

The Revolutions of 1848 637

IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

Political Cartoons: Attacks on the King 639 The Maturing of the United States 641

The Emergence of an Ordered Society 642

New Police Forces 642 Prison Reform 644

Culture in an Age of Reaction and Revolution: The Mood of Romanticism 645

The Characteristics of Romanticism 645 Romantic Poets 645 Romanticism in Art 646 Romanticism in Music 648 The Revival of Religion in the Age of Romanticism 649 CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 650

# AN AGE OF NATIONALISM AND REALISM, 1850-1871 653

The France of Napoleon III 654

Louis Napoleon: Toward the Second Empire 654 The Second Napoleonic Empire 654

OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

The Practice of Realpolitik: Two Approaches 655

Foreign Policy: The Mexican Adventure 656 Foreign Policy: The Crimean War 656

National Unification: Italy and Germany 658

The Unification of Italy 659 the Unification of Germany 661

Nation Building and Reform: The National State in Midcentury 665

> The Austrian Empire: Toward a Dual Monarchy 666 Imperial Russia 666

Great Britain: The Victorian Age 669

FILM & HISTORY

The Young Victoria (2009) 669 The United States: Slavery and War 670 The Emergence of a Canadian Nation 671

Industrialization and the Marxist Response 672 Industrialization on the Continent 672. Marx and Marxism 673

Science and Culture in an Age of Realism 675

A New Age of Science 675 Charles Darwin and the Theory of Organic Evolution 676 A Revolution in Health Care 677 Science and the Study of Society 680 Realism in Literature 680 Realism in Art 680 Music: The Twilight of Romanticism 682 CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 683

# MASS SOCIETY IN AN "AGE OF PROGRESS," 1871-1894 686

The Growth of Industrial Prosperity 687

New Products 687 New Markets 688

New Patterns in an Industrial Economy 689

GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

East and West: Textile Factory Work 692 Women and Work: New Job Opportunities 692 Organizing the Working Classes 693

The Emergence of a Mass Society 697

Population Growth 697 Emigration 698

Transformation of the Urban Environment 698 Social Structure of the Mass Society 702

"The Woman Question": The Role of Women 703

OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Advice to Women: Two Views 704

IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

The Middle-Class Family 706

Education in the Mass Society 708

Mass Leisure 700

Mass Consumption 711

The National State 712

Western Europe: The Growth of Political

Democracy 712

Central and Eastern Europe: Persistence of the

Old Order 713

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 716

# AN AGE OF MODERNITY, ANXIETY, AND IMPERIALISM, 1894-1914 719

Toward the Modern Consciousness: Intellectual and Cultural Developments 720

Developments in the Sciences: The Emergence of a New Physics 720

Toward a New Understanding of the Irrational 721

Sigmund Freud and Psychoanalysis 722

The Impact of Darwin 722

The Attack on Christianity 724

The Culture of Modernity: Literature 725

Modernism in the Arts 725

GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Impressionist Painting: West and East 728

Modernism in Music 729

Politics: New Directions and New Uncertainties 731

The Movement for Women's Rights 731

IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

The Struggle for the Right to Vote 733

FILM & HISTORY

Suffragette (2015) 734

Jews in the European Nation-State 734

The Transformation of Liberalism: Great Britain

and Italy 735

France: Travails of the Third Republic 737

Growing Tensions in Germany 737

Austria-Hungary: The Problem of the Nationalities 738

Industrialization and Revolution in Imperial Russia 738

The Rise of the United States 739

The Growth of Canada 741

The New Imperialism 741

Causes of the New Imperialism 741

The Scramble for Africa 742

OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

White Man's Burden Versus Black Man's

Burden 743

Imperialism in Asia 747

Responses to Imperialism 749

Results of the New Imperialism 751

# International Rivalry and the Coming of War 751

The Bismarckian System 751

New Directions and New Crises 752

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE . CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 754

# THE BEGINNING OF THE TWENTIETH-CENTURY CRISIS: WAR AND REVOLUTION 757

The Road to World War I 758

Nationalism 758

Internal Dissent 758

Militarism 759

The Outbreak of War: The Summer of 1914 759

The War 762

1914-1915: Illusions and Stalemate 762

1916-1917: The Great Slaughter 765

FILM & HISTORY

Paths of Glory (1957) 768

IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

Life in the Trenches 769

The Widening of the War 770

GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

Soldiers from Around the World 771

A New Kind of Warfare 771

The Home Front: The Impact of Total War 772

War and Revolution 777

The Russian Revolution 777

The Last Year of the War 783

Revolutionary Upheavals in Germany and

Austria-Hungary 784

The Peace Settlement 785

Peace Aims 785

OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Three Voices of Peacemaking 786

The Treaty of Versailles 786

The Other Peace Treaties 787

CHAPTER SUMMARY . CHAPTER TIMELINE .

CHAPTER REVIEW . KEY TERMS . SUGGESTIONS

FOR FURTHER READING . NOTES 790

# THE FUTILE SEARCH FOR STABILITY: EUROPE BETWEEN THE WARS, 1919-1939 792

An Uncertain Peace 793

The Impact of World War I 793

The Search for Security 793

The Hopeful Years (1924-1929) 795

The Great Depression 796

The Democratic States in the West 798

Great Britain 798

France 798

The Scandinavian States 799

The United States 799

European States and the World: The Colonial Empires 799

The Authoritarian and Totalitarian States 801

The Retreat from Democracy: Did Europe Have

Totalitarian States? 801

Fascist Italy 802	
Hitler and Nazi Germany 805	
The Soviet Union 812	
Authoritarianism in Eastern Europe	814
Dictatorship in the Iberian Peninsula	815

# The Expansion of Mass Culture and Mass Leisure 817

Radio and Movies 818

# FILM AND HISTORY

Triumph of the Will (1934) 819

Mass Leisure 819

# Cultural and Intellectual Trends in the Interway Years 819

Nightmares and New Visions: Art and Music 820
The Search for the Unconscious in Literature 822
The Unconscious in Psychology: Carl Jung 823
The "Heroic Age of Physics" 823

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE •
CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS
FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 824

# THE DEEPENING OF THE EUROPEAN CRISIS: WORLD WAR II 827

Prelude to War (1933-1939) 828

The Role of Hitler 828

The "Diplomatic Revolution" (1933-1936) 828

The Path to War in Europe (1937-1939) 830

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

The Munich Conference: Two Views 833

The Path to War in Asia 833

# The Course of World War II 835

Victory and Stalemate 835

The War in Asia 818

The Turning Point of the War (1942-1943) 839

The Last Years of the War 842

# The New Order 843

The Nazi Empire 843

Resistance Movements 845

The Holocaust 845

# FILM & HISTORY

Europa, Europa (1990) 846

The New Order in Asia 848

# The Home Front 850

The Mobilization of Peoples 850

Front-Line Civilians: The Bombing of Cities 853

# Aftermath of the War 854

# GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

The Impact of Total War in West and East 855

The Costs of World War II 856

The Impact of Technology 856

# FILM & HISTORY

The Imitation Game (2014) 856

The Allied War Conferences 856

Emergence of the Cold War 859

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 860

# 28 COLD-WAR AND A NEW WESTERN WORLD, 1945-1965 863

# Development of the Cold War 864

Confrontation of the Superpowers: Who Started the Cold War? 864

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Who Started the Cold War? American and Soviet Perspectives 865

## FILM & HISTORY

The Third Man (1949) 866 Globalization of the Cold War 867

Europe and the World: Decolonization 870

Africa: The Struggle for Independence 871

Conflict in the Middle East 872

Asia: Nationalism and Communism 875

Decolonization and Cold War Rivalries 877

# Recovery and Renewal in Europe 877

The Soviet Union: From Stalin to Khrushchev 877
Eastern Europe: Behind the Iron Curtain 879
Western Europe: The Revival of Democracy and the Economy 880

Western Europe: The Move Toward Unity 884

# The United States and Canada: A New Era 884

American Politics and Society in the 1950s 885 Decade of Upheaval: America in the 1960s 885

The Development of Canada 886

# Postwar Society and Culture in the Western World 886

The Structure of European Society 886

### GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

The Rise of the Supermarket in West and East 887

Creation of the Welfare State 888

Women in the Postwar Western World 889

Postwar Art and Literature 880

The Philosophical Dilemma: Existentialism 801

The Attempt to Revive Religion 892

The Explosion of Popular Culture 892

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 893

# 29 PROTEST AND STAGNATION: THE WESTERN WORLD, 1965-1985 896

# A Culture of Protest 897

A Revolt in Sexual Mores 897

Youth Protest and Student Revolt 897

# IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

Youth Culture in the 1960s 898

The Feminist Movement 900

Antiwar Protests 901

# A Divided Western World 901

Stagnation in the Soviet Union 901 Conformity in Eastern Europe 902 Repression in East Germany and Romania 903

### OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

Czechoslovakia, 1968: Two Faces of Communism 904 Western Europe: The Winds of Change 904

### FILM & HISTORY

The Iron Lady (2011) 906

The United States: Turmoil and Tranquility 908

# The Cold War: The Move to Détente 908

The Second Vietnam War 909
China and the Cold War 910
The Practice of Détente 911
The Limits of Détente 911

# Society and Culture in the Western World 912

The World of Science and Technology 912
The Environment and the Green Movements 913
Postmodern Thought 914
Trends in Art, Literature, and Music 914
Popular Culture: Image and Globalization 916
The Growth of Mass Sports 917
CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE •
CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS
FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 918

# 30 AFTER THE FALL: THE WESTERN WORLD IN A GLOBAL AGE (SINCE 1985) 920

# Toward a New Western Order 921

The Revolutionary Era in the Soviet Union 921
Eastern Europe: The Revolutions of 1989 and the Collapse
of the Communist Order 925
The Reunification of Germany 927
The Disintegration of Yugoslavia 927
Western Europe and the Search for Unity 929

### FILM & HISTORY

Das Leben der Anderen (The Lives of Others) (2006) 930 The Unification of Europe 932 The United States: Move to the Center 933 Contemporary Canada 934

# After the Cold War: New World Order or Age of Terrorism? 934

The End of the Cold War 935 An Age of Terrorism? 936 Terrorist Attack on the United States 936 The West and Islam 937

# New Directions and New Problems in Western Society 939

Transformation in Women's Lives 939 Guest Workers and Immigrants 940 The New Urban Environment 941

# Western Culture Today 941

Varieties of Religious Life 942 The Digital Age 942 Art in the Contemporary World 943 Music since 1985 945

# Toward a Global Civilization: New Challenges and Hopes 945

The Global Economy 945

### GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

The New Global Economy: Fast Fashion 946
Globalization and the Environmental Crisis 948
The Social Challenges of Globalization 950
New Global Movements and New Hopes 950

CHAPTER SUMMARY • CHAPTER TIMELINE • CHAPTER REVIEW • KEY TERMS • SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER READING • NOTES 951

Glossary 953 Index 963

# **DOCUMENTS**

THE BATTLE OF MARATHON

CINCINNATUS SAVES ROME: A ROMAN MORALITY

(Livy, The Early History of Rome)

(Appian, Roman History)

THE DESTRUCTION OF CARTHAGE 122

TALE 118

CHAPTER 1	(Herodotus, The Persian Wars)
THE CODE OF HAMMURABI 12 (The Code of Hammurabi) A SUMERIAN SCHOOLBOY 15	ATHENIAN DEMOCRACY: THE FUNERAL ORATION OF PERICLES 71 (Thucydides, History of the Peloponnesian War)
(Essay for Schoolboys)  OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: THE GREAT FLOOD: TWO VERSIONS 16 (Epic of Gilgamesh and Genesis 6:11–15, 17–19; 7:24; 8:3, 13–21)  SIGNIFICANCE OF THE NILE RIVER AND THE PHARAOH 17 (Hymn to the Nile and Hymn to the Pharaoh)  AKHENATEN'S HYMN TO ATEN 24 (Hymn to Aten)  RESPECT FOR WOMEN 25	OISASTER IN SICILY 73 (Thucydides, History of the Peloponnesian War)  SOPHOCLES: "THE MIRACLE OF MAN" 76 (Sophocles, Antigone)  THE POLITICS OF ARISTOTLE 80 (Aristotle, Politics)  OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: WOMEN IN ATHENS AND SPARTA 83 (Xenophon, Oeconomicus; Xenophon, Constitution of the Spartans; Aristotle, Politics; and Plutarch, Lycurgus)
(Any, Advice to a Young Man Concerning Women)  A FATHER'S ADVICE 26  ("The Instruction of Ptah-hotep")	CHAPTER 4  OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: DEMOSTHENES AND ISOCRATES ADDRESS PHILIP OF MACEDONIA 89  (Demosthenes, The Third Philippic and Isocrates,
THE COVENANT AND THE LAW: THE BOOK OF EXODUS 36 (Exodus 19:1-8)	Address to Philip)  ALEXANDER MEETS AN INDIAN KING 92  (Arrian, The Campaigns of Alexander)
THE HEBREW PROPHETS: MICAH, ISAIAH, AND AMOS 38 (Micah 6:9–16; Isaiah 10:1–6; and Amos 3:1–2) OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: THE GOVERNING	THE CHARACTER OF ALEXANDER 93 (Arrian, The Anabasis of Alexander) RELATIONS BETWEEN GREEKS AND NON-GREEKS 98 (Letter to Zenon and Letter to Dionysios)
OF EMPIRES: TWO APPROACHES 43  (King Sennacherib Describes His Siege of Jerusalem 701  B.C.E.; King Ashurbanipal (669–627 B.C.E.) Describes His  Treatment of Conquered Babylon; The Cyrus Cylinder)	A NEW AUTONOMY FOR WOMEN? 100 (Letter from Isias to Hephaistion, 168 B.C.E. and Letter from Ktesikles to King Ptolemy, 220 B.C.E.) TREATMENT OF SLAVES IN THE EGYPTIAN
THE CODE OF ASSURA 44 (The Code of Assura)	GOLD MINES 101 (Diodorus of Sicily, Library of History)
THE CUSTOMS OF THE PERSIANS 46 (Herodotus, The Persian Wars) THE FALL OF BABYLON 48 (Herodotus, The Persian Wars)	THE STOIC IDEAL OF HARMONY WITH GOD 106 (Cleanthes, Hymn to Zeus)
CHAPTER 3	CHAPTER 5 THE TWELVE TABLES 116
HOMER'S IDEAL OF EXCELLENCE 58 (Homer, Iliad)	(Selections from the Twelve Tables) CINCINNATUS SAVES ROME: A ROMAN MORALITY

THE TEACHING OF TYRANNY

(Herodotus, The Persian Wars)

THE LYCURGAN REFORMS 63

(Plutarch, Lycurgus)

THE VESTAL VIRGINS 125 (Dionysius of Halicarnassus, Roman Antiquities)  CATO THE ELDER ON WOMEN 128 (Livy, The History of Rome)  HOW TO WIN AN ELECTION 133 (Quintus Tullius Cicero, How to Win an Election)	AN ANGLO-SAXON ABBESS: HILDA OF WHITBY 196 (Bede, The Ecclesiastical History of the English People) A BYZANTINE EMPEROR GIVES MILITARY ADVICE 202 (Maurice, Strategikon)
OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: THE END OF THE REPUBLIC: THREE VIEWS 135 (Sallust, The War with Catiline; Caesar, The Civil Wars; and Cicero, Letter to Atticus)	CHAPTER 8 THE ACHIEVEMENTS OF CHARLEMAGNE 211 (Einhard, Life of Charlemagne)
THE ASSASSINATION OF JULIUS CAESAR 137 (Plutarch, Life of Caesar)	ADVICE FROM A CAROLINGIAN MOTHER 216 (Dhuoda, Handbook for William)
CHAPTER 6 THE ACHIEVEMENTS OF AUGUSTUS 145 (Augustus, Res Gestae)	MEDICAL PRACTICES IN THE EARLY MIDDLE AGES 218 (The Anglo-Saxon Herbal; The Leechbook of Bald; and The Peri-Didaxeon)
OVID AND THE ART OF LOVE 149 (Ovid, The Art of Love)	THE VIKINGS INVADE ENGLAND 222 (Anglo-Saxon Chronicle)
THE FATE OF CREMONA IN THE YEAR OF THE FOUR EMPERORS 150 (Tacitus, The Histories) THE ERUPTION OF MOUNT VESUVIUS 160 (Pliny, Letter to Cornelius Tacitus)	GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES: LORDS, VASSALS, AND SAMURAI IN EUROPE AND JAPAN 225 (Bishop Fulbert of Chartres and The Way of the Samurai) THE MANORIAL COURT 229
THE ROMAN FEAR OF SLAVES 161 (Tacitus, The Annals of Imperial Rome)	(Description of a Manor House) A WESTERN VIEW OF THE BYZANTINE
GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES: WOMEN IN THE ROMAN AND HAN EMPIRES 163 (Gaius Musonius Rufus, "That Women Too Should Study Philosophy" and Ban Zhao, Admonitions for Women)	EMPIRE 230 (Liudprand of Cremona, Antapodosis)  A MUSLIM'S DESCRIPTION OF THE RUS 233 (Ibn Fadlan, Description of the Rus)
CHRISTIAN IDEALS: THE SERMON ON THE MOUNT 167 (The Gospel According to Matthew)	CHAPTER 9
OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: ROMAN AUTHORITIES AND A CHRISTIAN ON CHRISTIANITY 170–171 (An Exchange Between Pliny and Trajan)	THE ELIMINATION OF MEDIEVAL FORESTS 241 (Suger's Search for Wooden Beams)  WOMEN IN MEDIEVAL THOUGHT 245 (Gratian, Decretum)
CHAPTER 7 OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: TWO VIEWS OF THE HUNS 180	OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: TWO VIEWS OF TRADE AND MERCHANTS 249 (Reginald of Durham, Life of Saint Godric and Ibn Khaldun, Prolegomena)

# HUNS 180

(Ammianus Marcellinus, The Later Roman Empire and Priscus, "An Account of the Court of Attila the Hun")

GERMANIC CUSTOMARY LAW: THE ORDEAL 186 (Gregory of Tours, An Ordeal of Hot Water, ca. 580)

THE CONFESSIONS OF AUGUSTINE (Augustine, Confessions)

POPE LEO MEETS ATTILA THE HUN (a contemporary account)

THE LIFE OF SAINT ANTHONY (Athanasius, The Life of Saint Anthony)

IRISH MONASTICISM AND THE PENITENTIAL 193 (The Penitential of Cummean)

A COMMUNAL REVOLT 251

(A Student Riot at Oxford)

Nogent-sous-Coucy)

AT OXFORD 258

AQUINAS 260

(The Autobiography of Guibert, Abbot of

POLLUTION IN A MEDIEVAL CITY 254

UNIVERSITY STUDENTS AND VIOLENCE

THE DIALECTICAL METHOD OF THOMAS

(Thomas Aquinas, Summa Theologica)

GOLIARDIC POETRY: THE ARCHPOET

(The Archpoet, The Confession of Golias)

(The King's Command to Boutham)

CHAPTER 10

MAGNA CARTA 271

(Magna Carta)

THE DEEDS OF EMPEROR FREDERICK II

(Salimbene de Adam, Chronicle)

THE "GREGORIAN REVOLUTION": PAPAL

CLAIMS 280

(The Dictates of the Pope)

A MIRACULOUS POWER OF THE SACRAMENTS 285

(Caesar of Heisterbach and Stephen of Bourbon)

TREATMENT OF THE JEWS

(Canon 68; An Accusation of the Ritual Murder of a Christian Child by Jews; and The Regulations of

Avignon, 1243)

POPE URBAN II PROCLAIMS A CRUSADE

(Pope Urban II)

OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: THE SIEGE OF JERUSALEM: CHRISTIAN AND MUSLIM PERSPECTIVES

(Fulcher of Chartres, Chronicle of the First Crusade and Account of Ibn al-Athir)

CHAPTER 11

OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: CAUSES OF THE BLACK DEATH: CONTEMPORARY VIEWS

(Giovanni Boccaccio, Decameron; On Earthquakes as the Cause of Plague; and Herman Gigas on Well Poisoning)

THE CREMATION OF THE STRASBOURG JEWS

(Jacob von Konigshofen, "The Cremation of the Strasbourg Jews")

A REVOLT OF FRENCH PEASANTS 307

(Jean Froissart, Chronicles)

A FEMINIST HEROINE: CHRISTINE DE PIZAN

ON JOAN OF ARC 312

(Christine de Pizan, The Poem of Joan of Arc, July 31, 1429)

THE HUNDRED YEARS' WAR

(contemporary accounts)

BONIFACE VIII'S DEFENSE OF PAPAL

SUPREMACY 318

(Pope Boniface VIII, Unam Sanctam)

DANTE'S VISION OF HELL

(Dante, "Inferno," Divine Comedy)

A LIBERATED WOMAN IN THE FOURTEENTH

CENTURY 326

(The Testimony of Grazida Lizier)

CHAPTER 12

A RENAISSANCE BANQUET

(A Sixteenth-Century Banquet)

MARRIAGE NEGOTIATIONS

(Alessandra Strozzi to Her Son Filippo in Naples)

THE LETTERS OF ISABELLA D'ESTE

(Letter to the Imperial Envoy and Letter to Her Husband,

Who Had Ordered Her to Send the Boy to Venice)

OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: THE RENAISSANCE PRINCE: THE VIEWS OF MACHIAVELLI AND

ERASMUS 344

> (Machiavelli, The Prince, 1513 and Erasmus, Education of a Christian Prince, 1516)

PETRARCH: MOUNTAIN CLIMBING AND THE SEARCH FOR SPIRITUAL CONTENTMENT

(Petrarch, The Ascent of Mount Ventoux)

PICO DELLA MIRANDOLA AND THE DIGNITY OF MAN

(Pico della Mirandola, Oration on the Dignity of Man)

A WOMAN'S DEFENSE OF LEARNING

(Laura Cereta, Defense of the Liberal Instruction of Women)

THE GENIUS OF MICHELANGELO

(Giorgio Vasari, Lives of the Artists)

CHAPTER 13

ERASMUS: IN PRAISE OF FOLLY 368

(Erasmus, The Praise of Folly)

LUTHER AND THE NINETY-FIVE THESES

(Martin Luther, Selections from the Ninety-Five Theses)

LUTHER AND THE "ROBBING AND MURDERING HORDES OF PEASANTS" 374

(Martin Luther, Against the Robbing and Murdering Hordes of Peasants)

OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: A REFORMATION DEBATE: CONFLICT AT MARBURG

(The Marburg Colloguy, 1529)

CALVIN'S RULES FOR THE CHURCH IN GENEVA

384

(Plan for the Elders and Consistory and Rules for the Church in Geneva)

A PROTESTANT WOMAN 385

(A Letter to the Whole Citizenship of the City of Strasbourg from Katharine Zell)

LOYOLA AND OBEDIENCE TO "OUR HOLY MOTHER, THE HIERARCHICAL CHURCH"

(Ignatius of Loyola, "Rules for Thinking with the Church")

QUEEN ELIZABETH I: "I HAVE THE HEART

OF A KING"

(Queen Elizabeth I, Speech to the Troops at Tilbury)

CHAPTER 16

MARCO POLO'S TRAVELS 401

(Marco Polo, "Description of the Great City of Kinsay")

COLUMBUS LANDS IN THE NEW WORLD

(Letter to Raphael Sanchez, Treasurer to the King and Queen of Spain)

THE SPANISH CONQUISTADOR: CORTÉS AND THE CONQUEST OF MEXICO

(Cortés's Description of Tenochtitlán)

LAS CASAS AND THE SPANISH TREATMENT OF THE

AMERICAN NATIVES

(Bartolomé de Las Casas, The Tears of the Indians)

# THE ATLANTIC SLAVE TRADE 414

(Diary of a Citizen)

# GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES: WEST MEETS EAST: AN EXCHANGE OF ROYAL LETTERS 417

(A Letter to the King of Tonkin from Louis XIV and Answer from the King of Tonkin to Louis XIV)

# AN IMPERIAL EDICT TO THE KING

OF ENGLAND 420

(An Imperial Edict to the King of England)

# THE MISSION 424

(Félix de Azara, Description and History of Paraguay and Rio de la Plata)

CHAPTER 15

# A WITCHCRAFT TRIAL IN FRANCE 434

(The Trial of Suzanne Gaudry)

# THE DESTRUCTION OF MAGDEBURG IN THE THIRTY YEARS' WAR 439

(An Account of the Destruction of Magdeburg)

# THE KING'S DAY BEGINS 445

(Duc de Saint-Simon, Memoirs)

# PETER THE GREAT DEALS WITH

A REBELLION 451

(Peter and the Streltsy)

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: OLIVER CROMWELL:

# THREE PERSPECTIVES 460

(Oliver Cromwell on the Victory at Naseby; Cromwell on the Massacre at Drogheda; Edmund Ludlow, Memoirs; and Lord Clarendon, The History of the Rebellion and Civil Wars in England)

# THE BILL OF RIGHTS 462

(The Bill of Rights)

# WILLIAM SHAKESPEARE: IN PRAISE

OF ENGLAND 468

(William Shakespeare, Richard II)

CHAPTER 16

### ON THE REVOLUTIONS OF THE HEAVENLY

SPHERES 476

(Nicolaus Copernicus, On the Revolutions of the Heavenly Spheres)

# KEPLER AND THE EMERGING SCIENTIFIC

COMMUNITY 478

(Galileo to Kepler, Padua, August 4, 1597 and Kepler to Galileo, Graz, October 13, 1597)

### THE STARRY MESSENGER 479

(Galileo Galilei, The Starry Messenger)

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: A NEW HEAVEN?

FAITH VERSUS REASON 481-482

(Galileo, Letter to the Grand Duchess Christina, 1614 and Robert Bellarmine, Letter to Paolo Foscarini, 1615)

# NEWTON'S RULES OF REASONING 483

(Isaac Newton, Rules of Reasoning in Philosophy)

# MARGARET CAVENDISH: THE EDUCATION OF WOMEN 487

(Margaret Cavendish, "The Philosophical and Physical Opinions")

# THE FATHER OF MODERN RATIONALISM 490 (Renè Descartes, Discourse on Method)

# PASCAL: "WHAT IS A MAN IN THE INFINITE?" 495 (Blaise Pascal, Pensées)

CHAPTER 17

# THE SEPARATION OF POWERS 504

(Montesquieu, "Of the Constitution of England")

# THE ATTACK ON RELIGIOUS INTOLERANCE 50

(Voltaire, The Ignorant Philosopher and Voltaire, Candide)

# DIDEROT QUESTIONS CHRISTIAN SEXUAL

STANDARDS 506

(Denis Diderot, Supplement to the Voyage of Bougainville)

# A SOCIAL CONTRACT 509

(Jean-Jacques Rousseau, The Social Contract Book 1, Chapter 6: "The Social Pact")

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: WOMEN IN THE AGE OF THE ENLIGHTENMENT: ROUSSEAU AND

WOLLSTONECRAFT 511

(Rousseau, Émile, 1762 and Mary Wollstonecraft, Vindication of the Rights of Woman, 1792)

# THE PUNISHMENT OF CRIME 518

(Restif de la Bretonne, "The Broken Man")

# THE CONVERSION EXPERIENCE IN WESLEY'S METHODISM 524

(The Journal of the Reverend John Wesley)

CHAPTER 18

# THE FRENCH KING'S BEDTIME

(Comtesse de Boigne, Memoirs)

# FREDERICK THE GREAT AND HIS FATHER

(letters, Frederick to His Father, Frederick William I, September 11, 1728 and Frederick William to His Son Frederick)

531

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: ENLIGHTENED

# ABSOLUTISM: ENLIGHTENED OR ABSOLUTE? 536

(Letter of the Baron de Breteuil; Catherine II, Proposals for a New Law Code; and Catherine II, Decree on Serfs)

# BRITISH VICTORY IN INDIA 542

(Robert Clive's Account of His Victory at Plassey)

# MARITAL ARRANGEMENTS 544

(Richard Sheridan, The Rivals)

# THE IMPACT OF AGRICULTURAL CHANGES 547

(David Davies, The Case of Labourers in Husbandry Stated and Considered)

# THE BEGINNINGS OF MECHANIZED INDUSTRY:

# THE ATTACK ON NEW MACHINES 550

(The Leeds Woolen Workers' Petition, 1786)

## POVERTY IN FRANCE 556

(M. de la Bourdonnaye, Intendant of Bordeaux, to the Controller General, September 30, 1708 and Marginal Comments by the Controller General)

CHAPTER 114

THE ARGUMENT FOR INDEPENDENCE 562 (The Declaration of Independence)

# THE FALL OF THE BASTILLE 568

(A Parisian Newspaper Account of the Fall of the Bastille)

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: THE NATURAL RIGHTS OF THE FRENCH PEOPLE: TWO VIEWS 570–571

(Declaration of the Rights of Man and the Citizen and Declaration of the Rights of Woman and the Female Citizen)

# RESPONSE TO THE KING'S FLIGHT TO VARENNES 572

(Response to the King's Flight to Varennes Louis-Marie Prudhomme, Révolutions de Paris, 1791)

# JUSTICE IN THE REIGN OF TERROR 577 (J. G. Milligen, The Revolutionary Tribunal, Paris, October 1793)

# ROBESPIERRE AND REVOLUTIONARY GOVERNMENT 578

(Robespierre, Speech on Revolutionary Government)

# DE-CHRISTIANIZATION 580

(The Temple of Reason)

# NAPOLEON AND PSYCHOLOGICAL WARFARE 584 (Napoleon Bonaparte, Proclamation to the French Troops in Italy, April 26, 1796)

SHAPIFR 30

# THE TRAITS OF THE BRITISH INDUSTRIAL ENTREPRENEUR 594

(Edward Baines, The History of the Cotton Manufacture in Great Britain)

# THE STEAM ENGINE AND COTTON 595 (Richard Guest, A Compendius History of the Cotton-

(Richard Guest, A Compendius History of the Cotton Manufacture)

# DISCIPLINE IN THE NEW FACTORIES 599 (Factory Rules, Foundry and Engineering Works of

(Factory Rules, Foundry and Engineering Works of the Royal Overseas Trading Company, Berlin)

# THE GREAT IRISH POTATO FAMINE 606

(Nicholas Cummins, "The Famine in Skibbereen")

# GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES: ATTITUDES OF THE INDUSTRIAL MIDDLE CLASS IN BRITAIN AND JAPAN 610

(Samuel Smiles, Self-Help; Shibusawa Eiichi, Autobiography; and Shibusawa Eiichi on Progress)

# CHILD LABOR: DISCIPLINE IN THE TEXTILE MILLS 614

(Keeping the Children Awake and The Sadistic Overlooker)

# CHILD LABOR: THE MINES 615

(The Black Holes of Worsley)

CHAPTER 2

# THE VOICE OF CONSERVATISM: METTERNICH OF AUSTRIA 623

(Klemens von Metternich, Memoirs)

# UNIVERSITY STUDENTS AND GERMAN UNITY 629 (Heinrich von Gagern, Letter to His Father)

# THE VOICE OF LIBERALISM: JOHN STUART MILL ON LIBERTY 631

(John Stuart Mill, On Liberty)

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: RESPONSE TO REVOLUTION: TWO PERSPECTIVES 636–637

(Thomas Babington Macaulay, Speech of March 2, 1831 and Carl Schurz, Reminiscences)

# THE VOICE OF ITALIAN NATIONALISM: GIUSEPPE MAZZINI AND YOUNG ITALY 641

(Giuseppe Mazzini, The Young Italy Oath)

# THE NEW BRITISH POLICE: "WE ARE NOT TREATED AS MEN" 644

(Complaints from Constables of D Division of the London Metropolitan Police)

# BEETHOVEN'S INSTRUMENTAL MUSIC 649 (Beethoven's Instrumental Music, 1813)

CHAPTER 22

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: THE PRACTICE

OF REALPOLITIK: TWO APPROACHES 655

(Louis Napoleon, Proclamation to the People, 1851; Bismarck, Speech to the Prussian Reichstag, 1862; and Bismarck, Speech to the German Reichstag, 1888)

# GARIBALDI AND ROMANTIC NATIONALISM 66: (London Times, June 13, 1860)

# EMANCIPATION: SERFS AND SLAVES 668 (Tsar Alexander II, Imperial Decree, March 3, 1861 and President Abraham Lincoln, Emancipation Proclamation, January 1, 1863)

# THE CLASSLESS SOCIETY 675

(Karl Marx and Friedrich Engels, The Communist Manifesto)

# DARWIN AND THE DESCENT OF MAN 677 (Charles Darwin, The Descent of Man)

# ANESTHESIA AND MODERN SURGERY 679

(The First Public Demonstration of Ether Anesthesia, October 16, 1846)

# FLAUBERT AND AN IMAGE OF BOURGEOIS MARRIAGE 681

(Gustave Flaubert, Madame Bovary)

CHAPTER 22

# THE DEPARTMENT STORE AND THE BEGINNINGS OF MASS CONSUMERISM 689

(E. Lavasseur, On Parisian Department Stores)

# PROSTITUTION IN VICTORIAN LONDON 694

(Henry Mayhew, London Labour and the London Poor)

# THE VOICE OF EVOLUTIONARY SOCIALISM:

EDUARD BERNSTEIN 696

(Eduard Bernstein, Evolutionary Socialism)

# THE HOUSING VENTURE OF OCTAVIA HILL 701

(Octavia Hill, Homes of the London Poor)

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: ADVICE TO WOMEN: TWO 704-705

(Elizabeth Poole Sanford, Woman in Her Social and Domestic Character and Henrik Ibsen, A Doll's House)

# WOMEN'S SOCCER, 1881 711

(Ladies' International Match, Scotland V. England)

# BISMARCK AND THE WELFARE OF THE WORKERS 715

(Bismarck, Address to the Reichstag)

LHAPTER 24

# FREUD AND THE CONCEPT OF REPRESSION 723 (Sigmund Freud, The Origin and Development of Psychoanalysis)

# DOSTOEVSKY: AN ATTACK ON REASON 726 (Fyodor Dostoevsky, Notes from Underground)

# THE STRUGGLE FOR THE RIGHT TO VOTE 732 (Emmeline Pankhurst, My Own Story)

# THE VOICE OF ZIONISM: THEODOR HERZL

AND THE JEWISH STATE 736

(Theodor Herzl, The Jewish State)

# BLOODY SUNDAY 740

(An Account of Bloody Sunday)

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: WHITE MAN'S BURDEN VERSUS BLACK MAN'S BURDEN 743-744

(Rudyard Kipling, "The White Man's Burden" and Edward Morel, The Black Man's Burden)

# DOES GERMANY NEED COLONIES? 746

(Friedrich Fabri, Does Germany Need Colonies?)

WHAPPERR 25

# "YOU HAVE TO BEAR THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR WAR OR PEACE" 761

(Communications between Berlin and Saint Petersburg on the Eve of World War I)

# THE EXCITEMENT OF WAR 763

(Stefan Zweig, The World of Yestenday; Robert Graves, Goodbye to All That; and Walter Limmer, "Letter to His Parents")

THE REALITY OF WAR: TRENCH WARFARE 767 (Erich Maria Remarque, All Quiet on the Western Front)

# THE REALITY OF WAR: THE VIEWS OF BRITISH POETS 768

(Wilfred Owen, Dulce et Decorum Est and Siegfried Sassoon, Suicide in the Trenches)

# WOMEN IN THE FACTORIES 775

(Naomi Loughnan, "Munition Work")

# WAR AND LOVE 777

(Letters from a Lost Generation)

### SOLDIER AND PEASANT VOICES 781

(Letter from a Soldier in Leningrad to Lenin, January 6, 1918 and Letter from a Peasant to the Bolshevik Leaders, January 10, 1918)

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: THREE VOICES OF PEACEMAKING 786–787

(Woodrow Wilson, Speeches; Georges Clemenceau, Grandcur and Misery of Victory; and Pan-African Congress)

CHAPTER 26

# THE DECLINE OF EUROPEAN CIVILIZATION 794

(Johan Huizinga, In the Shadow of Tomorrow)

# THE GREAT DEPRESSION: UNEMPLOYED AND HOMELESS IN GERMANY 797

(Heinrich Hauser, "With Germany's Unemployed")

# THE VOICE OF ITALIAN FASCISM 804

(Benito Mussolini, "The Political and Social Doctrine of Fascism")

# ADOLF HITLER'S HATRED OF THE JEWS 806 (Adolf Hitler, Mein Kampf)

# PROPAGANDA AND MASS MEETINGS IN NAZI GERMANY 809

(Adolf Hitler, Speech at the Nuremberg Party Rally, 1936 and A Teacher's Impression of a Hitler Rally, 1932)

# THE FORMATION OF COLLECTIVE FARMS 814 (Max Belov, The History of a Collective Farm)

# SPAIN DIVIDED: A VIEW FROM BARCELONA 816 (George Orwell, Barcelona, 1936)

# HESSE AND THE UNCONSCIOUS 823

(Hermann Hesse, Demian)

CRAPTER 27

# HITLER'S FOREIGN POLICY GOALS 829

(Hitler's Secret Book, 1928)

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: THE MUNICH CONFERENCE: TWO VIEWS 833

(Winston Churchill, Speech to the House of Commons, October 5, 1938 and Neville Chamberlain, Speech to the House of Commons, October 6, 1938)

# A GERMAN SOLDIER AT STALINGRAD 841 (Diary of a German Soldier)

# HITLER'S PLANS FOR A NEW ORDER IN THE EAST 844

(Hitler's Secret Conversations, October 17, 1941)

# HEINRICH HIMMLER: "WE HAD THE MORAL

RIGHT" 849

(Heinrich Himmler, Speech to SS Leaders)

# THE BOMBING OF CIVILIANS 853

(London, 1940; Hamburg, 1943; and Hiroshima, August 6, 1945)

# EMERGENCE OF THE COLD WAR: CHURCHILL AND STALIN 859

(Churchill's Speech at Fulton, Missouri, March 5, 1946 and Stalin's Reply to Churchill, March 14, 1946)

### **CHAPTER 28**

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: WHO STARTED THE COLD WAR? AMERICAN AND SOVIET PERSPECTIVES 865

(George Kennan, The Long Telegram, February 1946 and Nikolai Novikov, Telegram, September 27, 1946)

# THE CUBAN MISSILE CRISIS FROM KHRUSHCHEV'S PERSPECTIVE 871

(Nikita Khrushchev, Khrushchev Remembers)

# FRANTZ FANON AND THE WRETCHED OF THE EARTH 874

(The Wretched of the Earth: Colonial War and Mental Disorders, Series B)

# KHRUSHCHEV DENOUNCES STALIN 878

(Nikita Khrushchev, Address to the Twentieth Party Congress, February 1956)

# SOVIET REPRESSION IN EASTERN EUROPE:

HUNGARY, 1956 880

(Statement of the Soviet Government, October 30, 1956 and The Last Message of Imry Nagy, November 4, 1956)

# THE BURDEN OF GUILT 883

(Hannah Vogt, The Burden of Guilt)

# THE VOICE OF THE WOMEN'S LIBERATION MOVEMENT 890

(Simone de Beauvoir, The Second Sex)

# CHAPTER 29

# "THE TIMES THEY ARE A-CHANGIN": THE MUSIC OF YOUTHFUL PROTEST 899

(Bob Dylan, "The Times They Are A-Changin")

# 1968: THE YEAR OF STUDENT REVOLTS 900

(A Student Manifesto in Search of a Real and Human Educational Alternative, University of British Columbia, June 1968)

# BETTY FRIEDAN: THE PROBLEM THAT HAS NO NAME 902

(Betty Friedan, The Feminine Mystique)

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS: CZECHOSLOVAKIA, 1968: TWO FACES OF COMMUNISM 904–905

(Two Thousand Words Manifesto and A Letter to Czechoslovakia)

# MARGARET THATCHER: ENTERING A MAN'S WORLD 907

(Margaret Thatcher, The Renewal of Britain)

# THE FURY OF THE RED GUARDS 911

(Nien Cheng, Life and Death in Shanghai)

# THE LIMITS OF MODERN TECHNOLOGY 913

(E. F. Schumacher, Small Is Beautiful)

### CHAPTER 30

# GORBACHEV AND PERESTROIKA 923 (Mikhail Gorbachev, Perestroika)

# VÁCLAV HAVEL: THE CALL FOR A NEW POLITICS 926

(Václav Havel, Address to the People of Czechoslovakia, January 1, 1990)

# A CHILD'S ACCOUNT OF THE SHELLING OF SARAJEVO 929

(Zlata Filipović, Zlata's Diary: A Child's Life in Sarajevo)

# THE WEST AND ISLAM 938

(Abbas Amanat, Empowered Through Violence: The Reinvention of Islamic Extremism)

# A WARNING TO HUMANITY 948-949

(World Scientists' Warning to Humanity, 1992; Findings of the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2013; and Additional IPCC Findings on Recent Climate Change)

# MAPS

MAP 1.1	The Spread of Homo sapiens sapiens 2	SPOT MAP	Arabia in the Time of Muhammad 204
SPOT MAP	Harappa and Mohenjo-Daro 5	MAP 7.7	The Expansion of Islam 205
SPOT MAP	The Yellow River, China 6	MAP 8.1	The Carolingian Empire 213
SPOT MAP	Central Asia Civilization 6	SPOT MAP	Division of the Carolingian Empire by the Treaty of Verdun, 843 219
SPOT MAP	Caral, Peru 6	MAP 8.2	Invasions of the Ninth and Tenth Centuries 221
MAP 1.2	The Ancient Near East 7	MAP 8.3	A Typical Manor 227
SPOT MAP	Hammurabi's Empire 9	SPOT MAP	The Byzantine Empire in 1025 230
MAP 1.3	Ancient Egypt 18	MAP 8.4	The Migrations of the Slavs 232
MAP 1.4	The Egyptian and Hittite Empires 23	SPOT MAP	The Abbasid Caliphate at the Height of Its
SPOT MAP	Stonehenge and Other Megalithic Sites in Europe 28	SPOT MAP	Power 234
MAP 2.1	The Israelites and Their Neighbors in the First	MAP 9.1	Medieval Trade Routes 248
	Millennium B.C.E. 34	SPOT MAP	Flanders as a Trade Center 248
SPOT MAP	Phoenician Colonies and Trade Routes,	MAP 9.2	Intellectual Centers of Medieval Europe 256
	ca. 600 B.C.E. 39	MAP 10.1	England and France (1154-1337): (left) England and
MAP 2.2	The Assyrian and Neo-Babylonian Empires 41		Its French Holdings; (right) Growth of the French
MAP 2.3	The Persian Empire at the Time of Darius 47		State 272
MAP 3.1	Ancient Greece (ca. 750-338 B.C.E.) 55	MAP 10.2	Christian Reconquests in the Western
SPOT MAP	Minoan Crete and Mycenaean Greece 55		Mediterranean 273 The Leads of the Mely Roman Empire in the Turolith
MAP 3.2	Greece and Its Colonies in the Archaic Age 61	MAP 10.3	The Lands of the Holy Roman Empire in the Twelfth Century 274
MAP 3.3	The Persian Wars 68	MAP 10.4	Northern and Eastern Europe ca. 1150 277
SPOT MAP	Piraeus and Athens 71	SPOT MAP	Settlements of the Teutonic Knights, ca. 1230 277
MAP 3.4	The Great Peloponnesian War (431-404 B.C.E.):	MAP 10.5	The Mongol Empire in the Thirteenth Century 278
	Alliances and Battles 72	MAP 10.6	Pilgrimage Routes in the Middle Ages 286
MAP 4.1	The Conquests of Alexander the Great 91	SPOT MAP	The Seljuk Turks and the Byzantines 290
SPOT MAP	The Mauryan Empire Under Asoka 94	MAP 10.7	The Early Crusades 292
MAP 4.2	The World of the Hellenistic Kingdoms 95		Spread of the Black Death 302
MAP 5.1	Ancient Italy 112	MAP 11.1	The Hundred Years' War 310
SPOT MAP	The City of Rome 113	MAP 11.2	The Holy Roman Empire in the Fourteenth
MAP 5.2	Roman Conquests in the Mediterranean, 264–133 n.c.n. 120	SPOT MAP	Century 315
MAP 5.3	Roman Dominions in the Late Republic,	SPOT MAP	The States of Italy in the Fourteenth Century 315
	31 n.c.e. 138	SPOT MAP	Avignon 318
MAP 6.1	The Roman Empire from Augustus Through Trajan	MAP 12.1	Renaissance Italy 339
	(14-117) 152	MAP 12-2	Europe in the Second Half of the Fifteenth
MAP 6.2	Trade Routes and Products in the Roman Empire,		Century 357
	ca. 200 154	MAP 12.3	The Iberian Peninsula 358
SPOT MAP	The Silk Road 155	MAP 12.4	The Ottoman Empire and Southeastern Europe 360
MAP 6.3	Imperial Rome 158	MAP 13.1	The Empire of Charles V 375
MAP 7.1	Divisions of the Late Roman Empire, ca. 300 177	SPOT MAP	The Swiss Cantons 377
MAP 7.2	German Migration Routes 182	MAP 13.2	Catholics and Protestants in Europe by 1560 387
MAP 7.3	The Germanic Kingdoms of the Old Western	MAP 13.3	The Height of Spanish Power Under Philip II 392
	Empire 183	MAP 14.1	Discoveries and Possessions in the Fifteenth and
MAP 7.4	The Spread of Christianity, 400-800 195		Sixteenth Centuries 404
MAP 7.5	The Byzantine Empire in the Time of Justinian 197	SPOT MAP	The Maya 408
MAP 7.6	Constantinople 200	SPOT MAP	The Aztecs 408
SPOT MAP	The Byzantine Empire, ca. 750 201	SPOT MAP	The Inca 408

MAP 14.2	Triangular Trade Route in the Atlantic	MAP 22.4	Europe in 1871 665
	Economy 413	MAP 22.5	Ethnic Groups in the Dual Monarchy, 1867 667
SPOT MAP	Southeast Asia, ca. 1700 416	MAP 22.6	The United States: The West and the Civil War 6
SPOT MAP	The Mughal Empire 418	MAP 23.1	The Industrial Regions of Europe at the End of the
SPOT MAP	The Qing Empire 419		Nineteenth Century 691
SPOT MAP	The West Indies 421	MAP 23.2	Population Growth in Europe, 1820-1900 698
MAP 14.3	The Columbian Exchange 426	SPOT MAP	Palestine 735
MAP 15.1	The Thirty Years' War 436	MAP 24.1	Africa in 1914 744
MAP 15.2	The Wars of Louis XIV 446	SPOT MAP	The Struggle for South Africa 745
MAP 15.3	The Growth of Brandenburg-Prussia 448	MAP 24.2	Asia in 1914 748
MAP 15.4	The Growth of the Austrian Empire 449	SPOT MAP	Japanese Expansion 750
MAP 15.5	Russia: From Principality to Nation-State 452	SPOT MAP	The Balkans in 1878 752
SPOT MAP	Sweden in the Seventeenth Century 453	MAP 24.3	The Balkans in 1913 753
MAP 15.6	The Ottoman Empire 454	MAP 25.1	Europe in 1914 759
SPOT MAP	Poland in the Seventeenth Century 456	MAP 25.2	The Western Front, 1914-1918 764
SPOT MAP	Civil War in England 459	SPOT MAP	The Schlieffen Plan 764
MAP 17.1	The Enlightenment in Europe 503	MAP 25.3	The Eastern Front, 1914-1918 765
MAP 17-2	Religious Populations of Eighteenth-Century	MAP 25.4	The Russian Revolution and Civil War 782
	Europe 522	SPOT MAP	The Middle East in 1919 788
MAP 18.1	Europe in 1763 533	MAP 25.5	Europe in 1919 789
SPOT MAP	Pugachev's Rebellion 537	SPOT MAP	The Little Entente 794
MAP 18.2	The Partitioning of Poland 538	SPOT MAP	Territory Gained by Italy 802
MAP 18.3	Battlefields of the Seven Years' War 540	SPOT MAP	Eastern Europe After World War I 815
MAP 19.1	North America, 1700-1803 561	MAP 27.1	Changes in Central Europe, 1936-1939 832
SPOT MAP	Rebellion in France 574	MAP 27-2	World War II in Europe and North Africa 837
MAP 19.2	French Expansion During the Revolutionary Wars,	MAP 27.3	World War II in Asia and the Pacific 839
	1792-1799 576	MAP 27.4	The Holocaust 848
SPOT MAP	Revolt in Saint-Domingue (Haiti) 580	MAP 27.5	Territorial Changes After World War II 858
MAP 19.3	Napoleon's Grand Empire in 1810 587	SPOT MAP	The Berlin Air Lift 866
MAP 20.1	The Industrial Revolution in Britain by 1850 597	MAP 28.1	The New European Alliance Systems in the 1950s
MAP 20.2	The Industrialization of Europe by 1850 602	mar 2011	and 1960s 868
MAP 21.1	Europe After the Congress of Vienna, 1815 622	SPOT MAP	The Korean War 869
MAP 21.2	Latin America in the First Half of the Nineteenth	MAP 28.2	Decolonization in Africa 873
	Century 626	MAP 28-3	Decolonization in the Middle East 875
SPOT MAP	The Balkans by 1830 627	MAP 20.4	Decolonization in Asia 876
SPOT MAP	Italy, 1815 628	SPOT MAP	European Economic Community, 1957 884
MAP 21.3	The Distribution of Languages in Nineteenth-	SPOT MAP	The Vietnam War 909
	Century Europe 633	MAP 30.1	The New Europe 922
MAP 21.4	The Revolutions of 1848-1849 638		
MAP 22.1	Decline of the Ottoman Empire 657	SPOT MAP	Chechnya 924
SPOT MAP	The Crimean War 657	MAP 30.2	The Lands of the Former Yugoslavia, 1995 930
MAP 22.2	The Unification of Italy 659	MAP 30.3	European Union, 2013 933
MAP 22.3	The Unification of Germany 663	SPOT MAP	Quebec 934

# **FEATURES**

# OPPOSING VIEWPOINTS

The Great Flood: Two Versions 16

The Governing of Empires: Two Approaches 43

Women in Athens and Sparta 83

Demosthenes and Isocrates Address Philip of Macedonia 89

The End of the Republic: Three Views 135

Roman Authorities and a Christian on Christianity 170

Two Views of the Huns 180

Two Views of Trade and Merchants 249

The Siege of Jerusalem: Christian and Muslim Perspectives 293

Causes of the Black Death: Contemporary Views 301

The Renaissance Prince: The Views of Machiavelli

and Erasmus 344

A Reformation Debate: Conflict at Marburg 379

Oliver Cromwell: Three Perspectives 460

A New Heaven? Faith Versus Reason 481

Women in the Age of the Enlightenment: Rousseau

and Wollstonecraft 511

Enlightened Absolutism: Enlightened or Absolute? 536

The Natural Rights of the French People: Two Views 570

Response to Revolution: Two Perspectives 636

The Practice of Realpolitik: Two Approaches 655

Advice to Women: Two Views 704

White Man's Burden Versus Black Man's Burden 743

Three Voices of Peacemaking 786

The Munich Conference: Two Views 833

Who Started the Cold War? American and Soviet

Perspectives 865

Czechoslovakia, 1968: Two Faces of Communism 904

# IMAGES OF EVERYDAY LIFE

The Egyptian Diet 27

Activities of Athenian Women 82

Children in the Roman World 162

Family and Marriage in Renaissance Italy 337

Spices and World Trade 405

Dutch Domesticity 457

The Science of Collecting 492

Women and the Enlightenment Salon 512

The Aristocratic Way of Life 553

Living Conditions of London's Poor 608

Political Cartoons: Attacks on the King 639

The Middle-Class Family 706

The Struggle for the Right to Vote 733

Life in the Trenches 769

Youth Culture in the 1960s 898

### FILM & HISTORY

300 (2007) 69

Alexander (2004) 92

Spartacus (1960) 127

Gladiator (2000) 158

The Lion in Winter (1968) 270

Vision 282

Joan of Arc (1948) and The Messenger:

The Story of Joan of Arc (1999) 311

Luther (2003) 372

Elizabeth (1998) 396

The Mission 424

Amadeus 515

Marie Antoinette (2006) 530

The Young Victoria (2009) 669

Suffragette (2015) 734

Paths of Glory (1957) 768

Triumph of the Will (1934) 819

Europa, Europa (1990) 846

The Imitation Game (2014) 856

The Third Man (1949) 866

The Iron Lady (2011) 906

Das Leben der Anderen (The Lives of Others) (2006) 930

# GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

The Stele in the Ancient World 11

The Influence of the East on the Greeks 66

The Influence of the Greeks on India 104

Roman and Chinese Roads 119

Women in the Roman and Han Empires 163

Lords, Vassals, and Samurai in Europe and Japan 225

Medieval Cities in the West and East 253

Medieval Monasteries in West and East 284

Religious Imagery in the Medieval World 321

West Meets East: An Exchange of Royal Letters 417

Sun Kings, West and East 442

Popular Culture in the West and East 520

Revolution and Revolt in France and China 569

Attitudes of the Industrial Middle Class in Britain and Japan 610

East and West: Textile Factory Work 692

Impressionist Painting: West and East 728

Soldiers from Around the World 771

The Impact of Total War in West and East 855

The Rise of the Supermarket in West and East 887

The New Global Economy: Fast Fashion 946

# PREFACE

DURING A VISIT to Great Britain, where he studied as a young man, Mohandas Gandhi, the leader of the effort to liberate India from British colonial rule, was asked what he thought of Western civilization. "I think it would be a good idea," he replied. Gandhi's response was as correct as it was clever. Western civilization has led to great problems as well as great accomplishments, but it remains a good idea. And any complete understanding of today's world must take into account the meaning of Western civilization and the role Western civilization has played in history. Despite modern progress, we still greatly reflect our religious traditions, our political systems and theories, our economic and social structures, and our cultural heritage. I have written this history of Western civilization to assist a new generation of students in learning more about the past that has helped create them and the world in which they live.

At the same time, for the tenth edition, as in the ninth, I have added new material on world history to show the impact other parts of the world have made on the West. Certainly, the ongoing struggle with terrorists since 2001 has made clear the intricate relationship between the West and the rest of the world. It is important then to show not only how Western civilization has affected the rest of the world but also how it has been influenced and even defined since its beginnings by contacts with other peoples around the world.

Another of my goals was to write a well-balanced work in which the political, economic, social, religious, intellectual, cultural, and military aspects of Western civilization have been integrated into a chronologically ordered synthesis. I have been especially aware of the need to integrate the latest research on social history and women's history into each chapter of the book rather than isolating it either in lengthy topical chapters, which confuse the student by interrupting the chronological narrative, or in separate sections that appear at periodic intervals between chapters.

Another purpose in writing this history of Western civilization has been to put the story back in history. That story is an exciting one, yet many textbooks fail to capture the imagination of their readers. Narrative history effectively transmits the knowledge of the past and is the form that best aids remembrance. At the same time, I have not overlooked the need for the kind of historical analysis that makes students aware that historians often disagree on their interpretations of the past.

# Features of the Text

To enliven the past and to let readers see for themselves the materials that historians use to create their pictures of the past, I have included in each chapter primary sources (boxed documents) that are keyed to the discussion in the text. The documents include examples of the religious, artistic, intellectual, social, economic, and political aspects of Western life. Such varied sources as a Renaissance banquet menu, letters exchanged between a woman and her fiancé on the battle front in World War I, the Declaration of the Rights of Woman and the Female Citizen in the French Revolution, and a debate in the Reformation era all reveal in vivid fashion what Western civilization meant to the individual men and women who shaped it by their activities. I have added questions at the end of each source to help students in analyzing the documents.

To help students examine how and why historians differ in their interpretation of specific topics, new historiographical sections were introduced in the ninth edition. Examples include "Was There a United Kingdom of Israel?"; "Was There a Renaissance for Women?"; "Was There an Agricultural Revolution?"; "The Retreat from Democracy: Did Europe Have Totalitarian States?"; and "Why Did the Soviet Union Collapse?" Each of these sections is now preceded by the heading Historians Debate to make students more aware of the interpretive nature of history.

An additional feature that began in the seventh edition was Images of Everyday Life, which combines two or more illustrations with a lengthy caption to provide insight into various aspects of social life and includes such topics as "Children in the Roman World," "Family and Marriage in Renaissance Italy," "Women and the Enlightenment Salon," and "Political Cartoons: Attacks on the King," Film & History, which now appears in a new, brief format, can be found in eighteen chapters; the features reference twenty films, including the new additions of Suffragette and The Imitation Game.

Each chapter has an introduction and illustrated chapter summary to help maintain the continuity of the narrative and to provide a synthesis of important themes. Anecdotes in the chapter introductions dramatically convey the major theme or themes of each chapter. Detailed chronologies reinforce the events discussed in the text, and a Chapter Timeline at the end of each chapter enables students to review at a glance the chief developments of an era. Some of the timelines also show parallel developments in different cultures or nations. Beginning with the eighth edition, a new format was added at the end of each chapter. The Chapter Summary is illustrated with thumbnail images of chapter illustrations and combined with the Chapter Timeline. A Chapter Review assists students in studying the chapter. This review includes Upon Reflection essay questions and a list of Key Terms from the chapter. The Suggestions for Further Reading at the end of each chapter has been thoroughly updated and is organized under subheadings to make it more useful.

Updated maps and extensive illustrations serve to deepen the reader's understanding of the text. Detailed map captions are designed to enrich students' awareness of the importance of geography to history, and numerous spot maps enable readers to see at a glance the region or subject being discussed in the text. Map captions also include a map question to guide students' reading of the map. To facilitate understanding of cultural movements, illustrations of artistic works discussed in the text are placed near the discussions. Throughout the text, illustration captions have been revised and expanded to further students' understanding of the past. Chapter outlines and focus questions, including critical thinking questions, at the beginning of each chapter give students a useful overview and guide them to the main subjects of each chapter. The section Connections to Today is intended to help students appreciate the relevance of history by asking them to draw connections between the past and present.

The focus questions are then repeated at the beginning of each major section in the chapter. A glossary of important terms (boldfaced in the text when they are introduced and defined) is provided at the back of the book to maximize reader comprehension. A guide to pronunciation is provided in the text in parentheses following the first mention of a complex name or term, and Chapter Notes is now at the end of each chapter.

# New to This Edition

While preparing the revision of Western Civilization, I reexamined the entire book and analyzed the comments and reviews of many colleagues who have found the book to be a useful instrument for introducing their students to the history of Western civilization. In making revisions to the tenth edition, I sought to build on the strengths of the first nine editions and, above all, to maintain the balance, synthesis, and narrative qualities that characterized those editions. To keep up with the ever-growing body of historical scholarship, new or revised material has been added throughout the book on the following topics:

Chapter 1 new Historians Debate feature, "Why Did Early Civilizations Develop?"; discovery of new hominids in Indonesia; Neanderthals and modern humans; the Lascaux cave; Enheduanna as chief priestess in Sumer; new feature, Global Perspectives: "The Stele in the Ancient World"; Hatshepsut.

Chapter 2 the Hebrew Bible, including the Documentary Hypothesis; the role of rabbis; the Ten Commandments; Assyrian society; Assyrian women; new document, "The Code of Assura"; new section, "Assyrian Culture."

Chapter 3 Minoan Crete; Mycenaean Greece; the so-called "Dark Age" in Greece; the polis; Greek cultural identity; new document, "The Teaching of Tyranny"; new feature, Global Perspectives: "The Influence of the East on the Greeks"; new Film & History format for 300; the role of the Persian threat for a growing sense of Greek cultural identity; the decline of the Greek states and the Sacred Band of Thebes; Euripides and a new section, "The Themes of Greek Tragedies"; growing sense of Greek cultural identity due to athletic games.

Chapter 4 new Film & History format for Alexander; new document, "The Character of Alexander"; the Ptolemaic kingdom of Egypt; the Greco-Bactrian kingdom; the Indo-Greek kingdom; political and military institutions; new feature, Global Perspectives: "The Influence of the Greeks on India"; new section, "The Appeal of Epicureanism and Stoicism"; the mystery religions; Judas Maccabeus.

Chapter 5 new Historians Debate feature, "Who Were the Etruscans?"; Aeneas and Romulus and Remus and the legendary founding of Rome; Brutus and the founding of the Roman Republic; citizenship policy and the Roman army; new feature, Global Perspectives: "Roman and Chinese Roads"; Roman imperialism; edited coverage of Roman slavery; new Film & History format for Spartacus.

Chapter 6 comparison of Augustus and Julius Caesar; revolts against Roman rule during the Pax Romana; new Historians Debate feature, "What Was Romanization?"; the provinces; contacts with Han China; trade with India; new Film & History format for Gladiator; revolts against Roman rule in Judaea; new feature, Global Perspectives: "Women in the Roman and Han Empires."

Chapter 7 Diocletian's religious policy and persecution of Christians; the emperor Constantine; the early Germans; the Ostrogothic Kingdom of Italy; the Visigothic Kingdom of Spain; Pope Leo I; new document, "Pope Leo I and Attila the Hun."

Chapter 8 new feature, Global Perspectives: "Lords, Vassals, and Samurai in Europe and Japan"; new document, "A Manor House"; Empress Irene; new section, "Women in the Islamic World"; Islamic women.

Chapter 9 the role of agriculture in the development of trade in the High Middle Ages; the Commercial Revolution of the High Middle Ages; new feature, Global Perspectives: "Medieval Cities in West and East"; universities and the introduction of Aristotle's works in the West.

Chapter 10 new Film & History format for The Lion in Winter; Bernard of Clairvaux; new Film & History format for Vision; monasticism; new feature, Global Perspectives: "Medieval Monastic Life in West and East"; new document, "The Miraculous Power of the Sacraments"; new Historians Debate feature, "What Motivated the Crusaders?"; the Fourth Crusade; the effects of the crusades.

Chapter 11 the longbow; the battles of the Hundred Years' War; new document, "The Hundred Years' War"; new Film & History format for Joan of Arc and The Messenger, the Babylonian Captivity of the church; the Great Schism and popular religion; new feature, Global Perspectives: "Religious Imagery in the Medieval World"; new directions in medicine.

Chapter 12 the Hanseatic League and the city of Lübeck; Florence in the Renaissance; the spiritual perspective of Italian Renaissance humanism; new document, "The Genius of Michelangelo"; Albrecht Dürer.

Chapter 13 Erasmus; new Film & History format for Luther; the spread of Luther's ideas; new document, "Calvin's Rules for the Church in Geneva"; Calvin's view of female rulers; new Film & History format for Elizabeth.

Chapter 14 the Aztecs; Spanish cities in the New World; new feature, "Global Perspectives: West Meets East: An Exchange of Royal Letters"; Mughal India; British India; new Film & History format for The Mission; the Columbian Exchange.

# CENGAGE braim

To register or access your online learning solution or purchase materials for your course, visit www.cengagebrain.com.



